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¢ INTERIOR, GROUND FLOOR.

Grocery, Provisions, Wines and Spirits, Green Fruit, and
Patent Medicine Departments.

Meredith Bros., Klddermmster
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CHINA AND FANCY DEPARTMENTS.
A Corner of one of.the SHow Roows on FIrsT FLOOR.

OFFICES, GENERAL VIEW,

Special attention % paid to orders arriving by pist telephone, or teleg

Hustrated Price List of tweélve different departments free by post on applicat

Meredith Bros., Kidderminster_'

Telepficne 200, v Telegraphic Address—" CAVALIER.”"



——— TO MANUFACTURERS.

\
Are you looking out for a suitable LR e Enquire from the Kidderminster
place for your works ? e Trades Association.

¥ following
— N\ advantages C —
- —_— to offer TR
= r . 3 =
CHEAP SITES ON RAILWAY
AND CANAL.

|
CHEAP GAS.  CHEAP COAL. |
CHEAP ELECTRIC POWER. ‘
GOOD WATER SUPPLY. |
PLENTY OF MALE LABOUR.

I |
i} Full particulars of Sites, Assessments, I \
u m Rates, etc., will "” f
||“ || be sent on A
F— application ‘ f——
F \————— o the —
- J  Secretary: u :

r
l Mr. WM. JOHNSTONE, Accouniant & Auditor, Gentral Chambers, Kidderminster. }
.
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AND RESTAURANT, [WE=gggen

THE BAXTER CAFE T

HIGH STREET and SWAN STREET, | oo
# # » KIDDERMINSTER, |/ ,_m.pg,,,;
= ;3; =——=—& ¢ MILL STREET.
EAYTERHOUST i64 :

BAXTER CAFE CAFE | ey r_“

RUFE
wxl!‘v ‘ ‘ i ONI-Y
q[TeARoows) S M

LuNcheoN| L |
BAR‘

GRELL ROOM e, |
(U] F‘AH‘THJ i

Baker and Confectioner,
Bride Cake Manufacturer.

-]

Best Family Bread,
Hovis and Bermaline Bread
supplied to all
parts of the Town Daily.

a

The Bread is machine made,
Balied in the most Modern Ovens
and BaHlery in the District,

JOSEPH RAY,

Proprietor

View of Baxter House.

Interior View of Hyglenic Baliery, Station Hill,



Telephone 65, Established 1790,

SIMPSON & SON,

Purveyors of FISH, GAME and POULTRY.

II.n
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WELSH MUTTON, VENISON, PURE ICE, &c.

VICAR ST., KIDDERMINSTER.

BULL STREET. BIRMINGHAM. HiGH STREET, SOLIHULL,
VICTORIA PARADE, ’\'ll)%Hl‘Y HAGLEY RD. EDGBASTON,

Deliveries to Stourport, Bewdley, Chuddesley and District Daily,
Rock and Cleobury District every Friday.

S. F. Westwood,

General Grocery, Tea and [Provision
{Merchant.,

86
MILY

C—

STREET,

Kidderminster.



PIGHSQ Note___We are AGENTS for this KIDDERMINSTER GUIDE
— — and can supply them from stock.

G. T. CHESHIRE & SONs, BN g

SOCIETYS

— Stationers, N/ .
= et S R : ‘ DEPQT

Eri_nters.

Booksellers,
gookbinjers.

Etc.

British and

Foreign #
‘Bible Society’s
Depot.
A corner of our Printing Office at T The Noted Shop for Stationery,
117, Mill Street. % Vicar Street.

———VICAR ST. & 1'7. MILL ST., KIDDERMINSTER.
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“HARVEY, :::;;r;:l;;NSTER." KEDDERMHNSTERi National Telephone No. 84,
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@D:DEPARTMENTS. GD

) G
Flour. @ Meals. Corn.

Our NEW MILL places our Flours All kinds. All descriptions. (We are large merchants
AT THE FRONT for quality. and can supply any quantity.)
Cake and Feeding Stuffs.
Agricultural Seeds. Agricultural Fertilizers.

All kinds. All kinds.
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AT no time in its history has Hidderminster witnessed a
greater number of improvements than during the past few years,
particularly as regards the number and character of the
residences erected. On one truct alone some 25 handsome resi-
dences have been built, and
others are in contemplation.

The tract is known as Hill
Grove Estate, adjoining
Chester and Comberton
Roads, near the tram ter-
minus, and intersected by
the new road known as
Hill Grove Crescent. As
was well known, the Hill
Grove Estate was for many
years one of the most
beautiful private estates in
or around Kidderminster.
It comprises in all some
twenty-seven acres, the
larger portion lying very
high, and commanding
chaz’ming views of the Mal-
vern, Clent, and Abberley
Hills, and a wide stretch
of country. The natural
drainage is perfect, and the
healthfulness as well as the
beauty of the location can
hardly Dbe excelled any-
where.

The great advantages of
the site—the tram running alongside, the railway station within
three minutes’ walk, near the centre of the town, and very low
rated, being outside the borough--combined with it= natural
beauty and the modern improvements made in i, at once

attracted public atiention, and already more than one half of the
lots have been sold. To enhance the value of the property for
residential purposes certain restrictions have been placed
upon purchasers of the lots. No residence can be erected
under a certain cost, nor
may any building be
erected and used for
trade purposes, These
restrictions will effectually
prevent the introduction
of a population undesir-
able in a purely residential
neighbourhood. Several
of the residences now on
this estate are among the
most attractive and artistie
in the town,

In epening up the Hill
Grove  Estate  Messrs,
J. P. Harvey & Co., have
considerably added to the
beauty of Kidderminster,
and it is gratifying te
know that their enter-
prise has been appreciated.
Those whe contemplate
building would do well to
examine this estate, as a
number of the choicest
lots still remain unsold.
Owing to a fortunate
purchase the owners of it
have been able to offer the lots at a very low rate—much
lower, indeed, than is charged for less desirable property in the
same neighbourhood. Either of the frm will be pleased to give
detailed information to anyone desiring it.



CORN, SEED, FORAGE, &

Clement Dalley & Co., Limite ) NANURE MERGHANTS

Specialities: - | Specialities :

DALLEY’S
LAMB FATTUM

for gheep and lambs,

FARM SEEDS
a great speciality.
Cataogreeisseed in March,

SEED POTATOES

~ DALLEY’S Direct from Scotland
RAPID FATTUM and Lincolnshire.
for pigs. MANURES
DALLEY'S Every description of
FILL PAIL fertilizers for farm
and garden always
DAIRY MEAL G oS
for milking cows, 2
£ GARDEN SEEDS
DALLEY'S Finest quality and
MIXED true to name.

POULTRY GORN

Hiwstroated Calado e
daptted Dn Februweary,

always reliable. ]
A Horticultural
DALLEY'S Sundries
GHICKEN of every deseription.
MIXTURE VAPORITE
DALLEY'S for destroying wire-
PIGEON worni and all soil
weets
MIXTURE insects.
; BULBS
DALLEY’S grown expressly for
FEEDING AND us in Holland,
FATTEN'NG {}amd:alvp‘:‘;;:gufd in
CAKE BEE HIVES

canuot be surpassed.

Telegraphic Address :
DALLEY, KIDDERMINSTER.

KIDDERMINSTER.

and appliances.

Nationsl Telephone No. 90.
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FIND ON’S Tea, Coffee, Grocery & Provision Stores.

~ TEH -

Specially Blended to suit the
water of the district.

COFFES

Roasted on the Premises and
Ground Fresh Daily.

General Groceries and
High-class Provisions
carefully selected.

NOTED HOUSE FOR PRIME
CHEDDAR CHEESE,

-
Gocds Delivered by Own Vans. %

02, Worcester St., Kidderminster. oo no. s
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High Street,

Phompson, Kidderminster,

Phote by W.



FINDON'S s i st s

92, Worcester Street, Kidderminster.

Agent for . Sh 11 > Agent for
¥ & A clLpEy, HoseSs Ohtueal St e Mazawattee,
Wine Importers Ind Coope's and Wolthm&n s Ale. Nectar and

» .
and Distillers. :::zz::‘li:g Stout Sparkling Cyder. Hurnlmaf\_'s Teas.
Bottler of Bass's, Allaspp's and Faulder's Silver
Guinness's, Allsopp's, Pilsener Pan Preserves and

Raggett's, Oakhill, Ind Coope's, Lager Beer. Marmalade.

Matured Sardines.

Ox Tongues.

Bottled Fruits for
Dessert and Puddings
in Large Variety.

Toilet Soaps in Great
Variety.

Dessert Peaches,
Apricots, Pears and
Pine Apple.

Coffee Roasted on the
g Premises and

SHOP INTERIOR. Ground Fresh Daily, THE YARD.,
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INTRODUCTION.

N issuing this little Guide to the town of Kiddermin-
I ster and its interesting and beautiful surroundings
few words are necessary by wayv of introduction.

Ag will be seen, and as its name in fact indicates,
Kidderminster is no town of mushroom growth but
has passed through ages big with change and improve-
ment since the early years of the first century to
which it dates its foundation. The Kidderminster of
those days had little resemblance to, or influence
upen the thriving town of to-day though the times
left their mark in the shape of place-names, etc., but
wvery early in the history of the textile industries the
town became famous for the making of carpets and the

lead it obtained then it has since retained and improved
upon until the terms Kidderminster and carpets have,
throughout the world, become synonymous. But it is
not as a thriving business or manufacturing town alone
that Kidderminster appears in this book, but rather as
the centre of a district rich in attractions alike to the
Historian, Antiquary, Geologist, Naturalist, and indead
to all who have an eve “to read fair nature’s open
book.” To all such we commend it in the hope that
it may, by its many-sided appeal, attract large numbers
of visitors and assist in some measure to further
popularize the town,

W. MATE & SONS, ILrb.,
Publishers,
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ESTABLISHMENT is patronised by the Elete of the DI.‘)U‘ICI
and their productions are reliable. 2 5 A

General Ioinen and
Woollen %Drapers.
SILK, COSTUME, DRESS and

Manchester Warehousemen,

Glovers, Hosiers, Jaberdasbers, Furriers,
Ribbon and Joacemen, ete.

MANTLE, BABY LINEN & LADIES
OUTFITTING SHOW ROOMS.

Regent House, Kidderminster.

SPECIAL ATTENTION G!VEN TO
MOURNING ORDERS. . . . . .

A large staff of experienced TAILORS, DRESSMAKERS, and MILLINERS,
who execute all Orders on the premises,
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IDDERMINSTER, one of the centres of
the carpet trade, whose sons have
founded branches in Yorkshire,
Scotland, and in the United States,
is, it must be acknowledged, an
unattractive though improving
town, situated on the low-lying
banks of the Stour, but within
easy distance of varied and picture-
sque surroundings of hill and vale,
dense woods and rich pasturage.
Itlay on the line of Roman road connecting Gloucester

and Uriconium, and a part of a Roman mill-stone was

found in Mill Street about fifty years ago. Roman
camps may be distinctly traced in the neighbourhood
of Arley Wood, Trimpley, and on Clee.

Of . Saxon, or rather Anglian, days we are reminded

by “the termination ‘‘ bury ’—a fortified hill, e.g.,

Woodbury, Wychbury, Stagbury; and the numerous

i

eys "—clearings in the forest land—which gradually
became villages—Chaddesley, Wolverley, Hagley, &e.

Its foundat’on dates possibly to 736, when Ethelbald,
King of the South Angles, granted by Charter a piece
of land to Earl Cynebert on which to build a church
in the district Wllllll had prey iously Leen known as
“Sture in Usmere.” It is quite possible, however, that
this church only replaced a previous structure, founded
by St. Chad, the Bishop of Lichfield, and Apostle of
the Midlands, about 6635, similar names being found in
Chaddesley (in Domesday, Cedeslai); Chaseley, in
South Worcestershire (in Domesday, Chaddeslai); and
two villages, Catsley and Catshill—one near Kinlet, and
one near Bromsgrove.

In Domesday survey, 1086, Chideminstre, with sixteen
berewicks or outlying farms, is entered as Royal property.,
No mention of a church oceurs, but it must be remem-
bered that Domesday was only an entry of the lands and
goods of subjects liable to taxation; hence its silence
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as to the existence of a church then proves nothing.
This royal demesne embraced about 2,400 acres of
arable land, together with extensive commons and
woods four miles in extent : mills, salt works, fisheries,
freemen and serfs. Its population is not supposed to
have been over 300.

There is no mention of a Castle here in Norman days,
and the unsuitability of the position is a sufficient
reason for its non-existence ; and when afterwards in
the stormy days of Henry IV. and Owen Glyndwr—
the Welshman who occupied Woodbury and pillaged
Worcester—the Lancastrian King did build a castle
here, its best defences were the morasses and branches
of the Stour which environed it.

Henry IV. made Sir John Phelip its first castellan,
but his occupancy was short-lived. Within ten years of
its erection, the nation was summoned to accompany
Henry V. to his French wars. Sailing from Southampton
and landing at Harfleur, 1415, that town was investcd,
hut held out obstinately. Illness broke out among the
invaders, and one of its victims was Sir John Phelip.
We may safely assume that Kidderminster men fought
valiantly at Agincourt shortly afterwards under their
deceased lord’s son, Sir William,

I the floor of the Chancel of the Parish Church we
have Kidderminster's oldest relic—the monumental
brass representing Sir John Phelip in the armour of
the period, and wearing his “ §8 " collar. It is a fine
specimen of Flemish work, and seems to prove his
attachment to the Lancastrian Kings, Hcnry IV. and

KIDDERMINSTIER.

V., no doubt shared by his successor and townsmen ;
while Bewdley was a rallying point for the Yorkists.

The “S87 collar is generally accepted as a proof
of Lancastrian attachment during the Wars of the
Roses, and is said to have been distributed by Henry
ol Hereford to his followers and supporters at Dover
when exiled by Richard II, It is a contraction of the
French “ Souveigne sese de moi''—Remember me—
and was used as a watchword for re-assembling on the
return of the banished Duke,

But as the brass is found in the Church, we may be
certain that the Church is older than the brass. Our
earliest record is that in 1315—a hundred years before
Agincourt—the greater altar was consecrated ; though
in 11;0 we read of a rectory, and in 1256 of a Rural
Dean of Kidderminster. -

During the Civil Wars of Charles I. and Cromwell,
our interest centres around the Royalist Sir Richard
Clare, and his opponent, Richard Baxter ; revived at the
battle of Worcester, 1651 ; and in the retreat of Charles
I1. along the outskirts of our town to Boscobel.

The two chief residences here in the sixteenth and
seventeenth centuries were the Castle and the IHall
The Castle was the home of the Cookseys, Wyntours
and Clares : at the Hall lived Waller, the Blounts, and
the Childes.

Its former trades were the weaving of various stuffs,
cloths, bombazine, damasks, and cap-making. The
cloth trade flourished for over 300 years, and then
gradually decayed. The weaving of carpets is said to



Photo by W. Thompson, Kidderminster, General View of the Town.
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have been introduced by Flemings, who set up their
looms in Blackwell Street, in Holland Court, in 1735.
The transition period, when steam power looms super-
seded those worked by hand, was a noisy and stormy
time. In 1828 looms valued at £3,000 were destroyed
before dragoons quelled the riot, and it was computed
that over £50,000 was lost in wages, the men eventually
accepting lower pay. Gradually hand looms have died
out, the output has been enormously increased, and so
has the rate of wages. A better style of work has been
fostered by the influence of the School of Art: and
by the Factories and Workshops Acts, work has been
better regulated.

By the Reform Bill of 1832, Bewdley, which had
hitherto returned two M.P.'s, was deprived of one, and
Kidderminster secured direct representation.

In 1835, Kidderminster was constituted a Corporate
Borough, with Mayor, six Aldermen and eleven Coun-
cillors, and adopted the arms of the Clare family—
Azure : two chevronels or; each charged with four
hurts, between three hezants.

The canal—connecting the Severn with the Weaver
and Trent—was formed about 1780 under the direction
of James Brindley, who for a time occupied Union Hall,
near Kinver.

The railway—at first known as the Oxford, Worcester
and Wolverhampton Railway—was constricted in 1852,
eventually passing into the hands of the Great Western.

The Corporation first supplied water for household
purposes in 1872, and in 1878 the new Cemetery of the
Borough was consecrated.

Ecclesiastical —THE PARISH CHURCH,

since the monastery which gave Kidderminster

its name was destroved by the Danes: and no
trace of it now remains. The oldest part of the present
building is the Chancel, but that cannot be ascribed to
any period earlier than Fdward 1., while the beautiful
Tower, which originally was separated from the Church,
is not earlier than Edward III. The Nave is later
still.” No mention of a Church here occurs in Domes-
day, possibly because Kidderminster was a Royal
demesne ; but in 1170 we read of a Rectory, and in
1256 of a Rural Dean. The greater altar was consecrated
by the Bishop of Worcester, in 1315. No title is given
to the Church until Baxter's day; it is simply * the
Church of Kidderminster.”

The Church is a massive and imposing structure, built
in the Decorated and Perpendicular styles of architecture,
the Chancel is Late Decorated, while in the Nav: the
Perpendicular predominates. The Tower is said to be
only a casing of its predecessor, but is ol majestic
proportions. The Clerestory is Perpendicular, and the
oak roof is of singularly good taste and simplicity, but
the stained glass windows are of a mixed character,
the finest both in design and execution being th> Awdry
windows in the South Aisle of the Nave. There is a
peal of eight bells, none, however, earlier than 1754 ;
and in Baxter's time there were as many as five galleries.
The alabaster Reredos representing the Last Supper,
and surmounted by fine canopy work, dates from 1880,

A FORMER writer says :—" It is a thousand vears



St. Ambrose Church, St. Mary's Church.
Phota by Cheshire & Sons, Kiddermineter. Photo by W. Thompson, Kidderminster.
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and the Choir Cloister was added in 1887. 'The Clerestory
windows (1897) commemorate the labours of Bishop
Claughton, Vicar here 1851—1867. In 18g4-5 the whole
of the exterior of the Tower, West front and battlements
were thoroughly re-faced by the liberality of our towns-
man and former M.P., Mr. John Brinton.

Toymes AND MONUMENTS.

The Altar Tomb next the rails of the Sanctuary in
the North wall of the Chancel is that of Sir Hugh
Cooksey and wife (A.D. 1445), who lived at the Old
Castle at Caldwell.

A little farther along is that of Sir Thomas Blount
and his wife (1580-5), surmounted by semi-circular
tablet with representation of their children.

The effigies of Sir Edward Blount and his two wives
stood originally in the South wall of the Choir, under a
beautiful canopy, but were removed when the Chancel
was widened, and are now replaced near their former
position.

Undoubtedly the finest monument in the Church is
the brass on the floor of the Chancel, in the centre of
the Aisle, to the memory of Sir John Phelip, his wife
Matilda, and her first husband, Sir Walter Cooksey.
Sir John Phelip died at the Siege of Harfleur, just hefore
Agincourt, 1415. (See Article on Kidderminster).

At the East end of the South Aisle of the Nave is the
site of the Chantry of St. Katharine, founded in 1403 by

KIDDERMINSTER.

Lady Joyce Beauchamp, whose tomb occupied the South
wall. It is a beautiful specimeu of Perpendicular work,
and contains an effigy of its foundress, in a niche under
a carved canopy ; it has been regrettably mutilated to
allow the supports of a former gallery to rest on the
canopy.

On the floor, under a slab, immediately in front, is
the grave of Sir Ralph Clare, the Royalist Knight of .
Caldwell, surmounted with the Arms of the Clares, and
inscribed : ** Here lieth the body of Sir Ralph Clare,
son unto Sir Francis Clare in this County : servant unto
Prince Henry, Knight of ye Bath, at ye Coronation of
King Charles 1., whom he attended through all his
glorious misfortunes : servant to King Charles II., both
in his banishment and retourne who died full of
days and fame i his 84th year—1670."

At the West end of the South Aisle in the North-East
buttress of the Tower, about six feet from the floor, is
a mass of stonework, apparently the support of a pulpit
for out-door preaching when the Tower was detached
from the Church, and somewhat resembling the pulpit
in the Refectory at Shrewsbury Abbey.

The Old Churchyard Cross, mentioned by Ieland
(Henry VIIL), which was defaced under the direction
of a Parliamentary order in Baxter's time, now covered
with evergreens, is probably an old preaching station,
when service was held in the Churchyard, A similar
Cross may be seen at Badger, near Bridgnorth.

The New Gates, generously given by the late Mr.



Photo by W, Thompson, Kidderminster. Interior St. Mary's Church.
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Jolin Corbett, of Impney, are copies of the originals, and
are of the Queen Anne style of hammered work.

It is to be regretted that when the Canal was comn-
structed by Brindley, about 1710, the face of the rock
was allowed to be cut away. Previous to this, there was
an entrance to the Church fiom Mill Street, over the
ground now forming the Canal lock and wharf.

At the East end of the Church is a building in the
Tudor style, known as the Chantry, used until 1848 as
the Grammar School, and now serving for Choir practice,
meetings, Sunday school, etc,

The “ Orp Harn,"” or Manor House of the} Blounts,
Childes, etc., stood at the top of Hall Street, adjoining
the Churchyard, and was possibly the site of the old
Monastery. It was Elizabethan in style and had a
sun-dial over the entrance. Another sun-dial may
still be seen at the South-West angle of the Tower,
overlooking the Canal.

OTHER PLACES OF WORSHIP.

Two other Parish Churches may well be visited—
ST. GEORGE'S, built in 1824, extremely light and airy,
and possessing great accommodation, both on floor and
in the galleries; and St. Joun's, built originally of
blue brick, with Bath stone dressings, dating back to
1843. Proving insufficient to the growing demands of

KIDDERMINSTER.

a greatly increased population, additions so extensive
have been made as to engulf the former building. The
present edifice, erected by the self-denying labours of
clergy, parishioners, and friends, hy continuous and
nobly sustained efforts for a number of years, is a
handsome, commodious, and well-fitted building.

The Roman Catholic Church of Sr. AMBROSE stands
on the Birmingham Road, and is attractive and well
attended.

The Nonconformists have also replaced most of their
old meeting houses by buildings of a more ecclesiastical
style than would have commended itself to their fore-
fathers.

The Baxrer CHURCH, formerly the Old Meeting,
stands near the Bull Ring, on the banks of the Stour,
and is considered the finest building belonging to the
Independents in the County.

The Un1rarians, or New Meeting, have a Chapel in
Church Street, with a stone frontage in the Perpendicular
style.

The WesLEvans, whose old Chapel, erected in 1803,
is in Mill Street, have recently built a larger and more
convenient Church in the Birmingham Road. {A

The Baprists’ Chapel is in Church Street, at the
foot of Arch Hill

The CountEss oF HUNTINGDON'S I'REE CHURCH is in
Park Street—another recent erection. |



Baxter Church and Statue. The Brinton Fountain.
Photos by W. Thompsou, Kidderminster,
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Old Crosses and Houses.

ESTDES the Old and New Crosses in the Churchyard
of the Parish Church, several roadside Crosses
were formerly standing on the outskirts of our

old town. Some of them were at the crossing of several
roads, and directed the wayfarer, like our modern
finger-posts ; e.g.—The High or Proud Cross, at the
top of Mill Street, opposite the Infirmary: Coventry
Cross, at the foot of Coventry Street; and Worcester
Cross, at the forking of the Oxford and the old Worcester
roads.

“The Market Cross,” says Leland, “ was a pretty
cross, environed with six pillars about, and arches of
stone, with the seventh pillar in the middle to bear up
the fornix,”” and stood at the bottom of High Street.
From this Market Cross, proclamations were made by
the High Bailiff, and banns of marriage published during
the days of the Commonwealth,

The Statues, of singular beauty of pose, are in the
centre of the town. That of RicHARD BAXTER, Curate
of the Parish Church in the stormy days of the Civil
War, was erected in 1875, and unveiled by Dean Stanley.
The inscription reads as follows:

Between the vears 1641 and 1660 this town was the scene of the
labours of RICHARD Baxter, renowned equally for his chrislian learning,
and his pastoral fdelity,

In a stormy and divided age he advocated unity and comprehension
pointing the wayv Lo
+*The Everlasting Rest.™
Churchmen and Noneonform.sts united to raise this memorial,

Adr iB7s.

RKIDDERMINSTER.

The other, of S1r Rowranp Hii, Author of the Penny
Postage, was erected in 1881, inscribed as follows :
SIR Rowraxp Hiun, K.CF,,
born at Kidderminstar, 1795 ; huried in Westminster Abbey, 187,

To hig creative mind, and patient energy, the world is indebted for the
Penny Postage introduced 1840,

Both are the work of the Worcester sculptor,
Mr. T. Brock, R.A.

Markets.

HE Markets of Kidderminster are well known
T throughout the district, being abundantly sup-
plied and extensively attended by purchasers

from Birmingham and the Black Country.

At the Auction Stock Market, held on alternate
Tuesdays, about 300 cattle, 1,000 sheep, and boo pigs
are entered ; and at the Wholesale Vegetable Market,
on Thursdays, a vast quantity of fruit, vegetables, etec.,
is disposed of.

The Retail Market is held in the Market Hall, and is
well supplied with poultry, fish, vegetables, etc.

The population of Kidderminster at the Conquest is
computed to have been about 300: in 1801—8,000; in
1851—21,000 ; and in 1881—-27,000.

(Collected mainly from the writings of Nash, Burton, and Grove),
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WORCESTERSHIRE, STAFFORDSHIRE AND SHROPSHIRE.

NOCK & JOSELAND, F.S.1., Auctioneers,

Toand Hgents, Surveyors
and Valuers.

SALES BY AUCTION of
Landed Estates, Town Properties, Household
Furniture, Farming Stock, &c. Timber, Machinery
: and Manulfactured Goods, Shares, &c.
B Ii-m--r—‘-——xupv‘ - el : Fisy VALUATIONS for Estate Duty, Probate and Transfer.
1 .‘ : v il i 4 ! i ! VALUATIONS of Property, Farming Stnck, Furniture,
Tenant Right, Timber, &c.

Management of Landed Estates and House Property,
Collection of Rents, &c.

KIDDERMINSTER CATTLE MARKET SALES

Each alternate Tuesday,

The best ali vound Market in the Midiands,

WOLVERHAMPTON WEEKLY STOCK SALES
Every Wednesday,

Offices:

Bank Buildings, KIDDERMINSTER. Telaphons Deglstily) Hlscashic

KIDDERMINSTER No. 53. Address:

48, Queen St., WOLVERHAMPTON. WOLVERHAMPTON No. 70 “JOSELAND, KIDDERMINSTER."
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NOVELTY NECRWEAR

GENTLEMEN'S

HATTER, HOSIER, GILOVER,
AND SHIRTMAKER.

LATEST NOVELTIES IN NECKWEAR,.

Merlev's Superior Underwear,
“ @uaranteed Unsbrinkable.”

CRICKET, BOATING,
AND OTHER SPORTS OUTFITTER.
&
CORRECT STYLE, STERLING VALUE, AT
Harry James, Oxford St., Kidderminster.
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Kidderminster Worthies.

uEN the Conqueror took possession of our land,
W Kidderminster became a toyal demesne and so
continued until Henry IL bestowed it on his
dapifer Manser de Biset, but no wvestige or sign of a
Norman castle is left, indeed the nature of the ground
forbade it; mnature had encompassed it by rive: and
swamp, but no rock was sufficiently commanding and
secure to invile the erection of a fortress.

The manor and mill of Caldwell then e passed to Sir
Joun Puriie, who married the heiress of Biset. The
mill appears to have been enlarged and castellated by
Henry IV. as a rallying place for his supporters during
his wars with the Welsh under Owen Glyndwr after
the sack of Worcester, and fortified by dividing the
Stour so as to encompass it and form its moat. This
Sir John Phelip became its first Castellan, and alterwards
accompanied Henry V. on his invasion of France, I415,
and died at the siege of Harfleur, just before the battle
of Agincourt. He is commemorated by an ancient
brass of Flemish workmanship on the Chancel floor
of the Parish Church. Cooksevs, Wynrovukrs and
Crargs became in turn the owners of Caldwell ; while
the Blounts, Waller and Dobbins oceupied the old Hall
near the Church.

S1r RALPH CLARE, of Caldwell, was a stanneh Royalist,
and great was the rivalry during the dark days of the
Civil War between the supporters of the two factions.
Overthrown, fined and imprisoned for his zeal and
attachment to Charles 1., Clare readily and ardently

KIDDERMINSTER.

joined Charles 1., and took part in the final struggle at
Worcester, 1051, Again he was fined and imprisoned,
and when ultimately liberated he joined his Prince
in his exile, until at the Restoration, Clare returned

“joviully to Caldwell - and lived peacefully and undis-

turbed until his death at the age of 83. He lies buried
at the east end of the south aisle, at the foot of the
Beauchamp tomb.

As Sir Ralph Clare championed the Royalists,
RicHarD Baxtrer, the Puritan preacher, who then
provisionally occupied the pulpit at the Parish Chureh,
constituted himself the leader of his opponents until
on the return of Charles I1. and Sir Ralph Clare. Baxter
—unwilling to accept the terms offered by Morley,
Bishop of Worcester, and the Church- party—reling-
quished his pastoral work at Kidderminster for the
remainder of his life, leaving behind him a god-learing
parish, and a multitude of writings -embracing * The
Saints’ everlasting rest,” and ““ A call to the uncon-
verted."

S1w Josianm MAsoN, the inventor of the now universally
used steel pen, was born in Mill Street, 1795  When he
came of age he left his native town for Birmingham,
and in various mechanical eallings he amassed a large
fortune, which, at his death in 1881, he bequeathed to
found and endow the well-known Almshouses, Orphanage
and Science College at Birmingham bearing his name.

Sk Rowraxp Hivn, perhaps the greatest and most
practical of Kidderminster's sons, was born in Blackwell
Street, in 1795, and was therefore contemporaneous
with Sir Josiah Mason. Like him, he quitted his birth-
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place in early life, and spent several years as a school
teacher in Birmingham, where he rapidly made a name
both for himself and his school : and gathered a band
of zealous workers for self-improvement and personal
advancement. Hspecially did he turn his thoughts
to a thorough simplification and reform of the postal
svstem ;. nor did he relax his efforts in this direction
until in 1839 ** Penny Postage ™’ became the law of the
land. He next became Chairman and Managing
Director of the London and Brighton railway, and again
showed his originality by inaugurating excursion and
express trains. He afterwards returned to Parliamentary
life where honours, grants, and lhearty mnational
thanks were showered upon him. He died 1879, and
was honoured with a grave in Westminster Abbey.

Carpet Weaving.

community of weavers. In early days they wove
cloth, caps woollens, hombazines, and tapestries
for hangings. Baxter says—circa 1650—" My people
were not rich, but: there were very few beggars, because
their trade of stuff-weaving would find work for them
all.” i
In the eighteenth century trade was greatly depressed,
until the weaving of earpets was introduced by Ilemish
and French weavers, who settled just at Wilton and
Axminster, and began weaving the carpets which still
bear these names _Another Flemish weaver was brought

F‘OR over six centuries Kidderminster has been a

KIDDERMINSTER.

over by one of the Kidderminster employers, and the
first loom is said to have been erected by him in Ho'land
Court in Blackwell Street, 1735, for weaving Brussels
carpets. Gradually the older employments were
deserted, and the weavers turned their entire attention
to the new industry which rapidly expanded, although
restricted to the produce of hand-looms  When in
1704, it was proposed to manufacture carpets by the
aid of machinery, hitter opposition was manifested by
the Kidderminster weavers who anticipated certain
ruin unless the use of machinery was interdicted by law,
and owing to the want of emplovment many enlisted,
and were formed into the 87th and 88th Regiments of
foot, and were then drafted across the Atlantic, where
they fought during the war of American independernce,
Carpets were generally woven in hand-looms until
between 1850 and 1860, when power looms, which
demanded larger buildings, better adapted for the trade
came into more general use.

The various Factories' and Workshops' Acts have
greatly improved and regulated the conditions of labour,
while the mfluence of the School of Art has raised the
tone of designs adopted by the trade. In recent years
the looms have been considerably widened, and Axmins-
ter carpets—introduced 1878—are now manufactured
in ever-increasing  quantities, and almost unlimited
in their colouring and width. Axminster carpets are
manufactured by an inverted process, and are singularly
soft to the tread owing to the thickness and density of
the pile. Tirst introduced in 1878, they have rapidly
gained for themselves the premier position in the carpet
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world owing to their richness of design and colouring,
being unlimited by the number of frames as in Brussels
and Wiltons. In Brussels carpets the bed consists of
jute, with which the woollen surface is entwined ;
all Brussels carpets are three-quarters of a yard wide
and are to be preferred for constant use. In Kidder-
minster carpets—woven mainly in Scotland and York-
shire—the carpet is reversible, but of slighter make.
Wiltons or Velvet-pile have a soft smooth surface which
vields agreeably to the tread, and are manufattured
by slitting the loops formed over the wires, and then
shearing the wool level

Habberley Valley and Trimpley.

Valley,” about three miles from the Station,

and to which conveyances run from both town
and station on Mondays, Wednesdays and Saturdays ;
fare, 4d. each way.

Habberley Valley and the neighbouring hil of
Trimpley offer a fine field for study to the geologist.
“The hill of Trimpley,” says Roberts, “ was the first
bit of dry land that appeared above the waters in
North Worcestershire,” and is an agglomeration of
various strata that have heaped their rocks against this
ancient mass of Devonian Upper tilestones, forming the
cap of the hill, crowned by the imitation Norman
Church at the farther extremity of the green. This

EVER\-‘ visitor to Kidderminster must go to “ The
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Devonian mass forms an anti-clinal against which rest
the newer rocks—Devonian Cornstones, the Shatterford
Coal Measures, Permian breccias, and the New Red,
which latter underlies most of the vicinity of Kidder-
minster. And how different in texture as well as in
age are these various layers. Fossils, consisting of
fragments of scales of fishes, belonging to the old Red
Sandstone ; and calamites and sigillaria found in the
Coal Measures, may occasionally be found, bearing
silent testimony to the time ere man was a dweller on
our planet. Then when Wales was an elevated mass,
and England only slowly rising from its submerged
state, the Severn straits forimed the line of division
between the older and newer lands, which joined the
estuaries of the Dee and Severn, and carried on their
bosom the remains of glaciers from the icy regions, and
their burden of both animals and rocks which thu had
involuntarily borne from their Northern home. ** The
course of the Severn straits through North Worcester-
shire was pleasantly diversified by little bays on either
side : hollows which the dashing waves had worn in
the sides of the hills that confined their waters, and
one of these little bays was Habberley." In process
of time the advancing and receding waves threw up a
sandbank, still to be traced in the sand dunes of Warshill
Common ; the little bays became detached from the
parent waters, and gradually formed salt lagoons ; and
to this day marine plants, descendants of a lost flora,
may be found struggling for their existence, and visited
occasionally by sea-birds as though in search of a
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long-lost home handed down by their natural instinet,
but compelled to retire baflled in their search.

In the bed of the valley will be seen the Giant's
Grave, a sedimentary mass of sand, gradually welded
and consolidated by the waves into a concretionary
mass, and overlooked bv the lordly TPeaked Rock,
standing like a sentinel on guard, defying the restless
and aggressive waters of the mere. At the far end of
the valley—rooting its gnarled and knotty roots deep
into the fissures of the rocks which form the barrier
across the termination of the valley, is its oldest living
inhabitant—an ancient and wvenerable yew. What
generations of mankind has it outlived as it has gazed
o'er the extensive and commanding view to the south,
embracing the valley of the Severn as far as the Cots-
wolds, and broken on our right by the Malverns,
Storridge, 'Ankerdyne, Abberley, Staghury, ete. And
what a wealth of light and shadow is garnered by
the blending of the sand dunes of Hartlebury Common,
dotted here and there with patches of gorse and heather,
bordered by the well wooded slopes of the neighbouring
hills, and towered and softened by the hills that ** dim
and distant rise.”

Quite close to us we see Wars-hill, enclosing the
remains of a quadrilateral camp where Roman soldiers
watched for any sign of an advancing enemy, as
evidenced by the recent finding of a Roman coin there.
Wars-hill evidently was one of the chain of hills occupied
first by Briton and then by Roman during the long-
continued struggle for supremacy between Ostorius and
Caradoc, and which was carried on from the Wiltshire

Downs into the heart of Central Wales, where the final
and decisive battle took place, A 51,

The least-visited and wildest part of the valley is at
its southern outlet, where a long ridge of sandstone,
terraced by pines and firs, and gradually eaten away,
first by the dashing and gurgling waves, and then by
the disintegrating power of frost and rain, stretches as
far as the road from Franche to Bewdley. Here and
there the rock has fallen, leaving a rich and ruddy
surface of the bluff exposed: vonder are clumps of
heather enriching and diversifving the landscape.  Fine
silvery sand has heen washed down from the heights
above, flecking and toning down the view as we wend
along the winding path at its foots |

The ferns with which Nature has bedecked and
carpeted the valley are gradually being cleared away,
and few except the common Bracken and the Male
fern, together with the Polypody in scattered and
unfrequented spots, are now to be found ; though in
the neighbourhood one may occasionally meet with the
Blechnum, Soft Shield, and Green-stem Lady Fern:
and in an old stone wall, where after each storm the
ain will trickle to the roots embedded in the mortar,
the Wall-rue Spleenwort,

Carefully preserved in the museum at Worcester is a
spear-head, found when excavating for the foundations of
Trimpley Church, 1844. ‘I'he skeleton of a warrior
taking his long and last rest, with hound on one side
and spear on the other, suggests that the bones are
those of a Danish skald who fell during the attack
made by King Alfred on the retreating Danes after
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Rock House, HKinver.
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their hill-fortress at Buif, near Quatford, was no longer
tenable, 8g6-7.

Kinver Edge.

NE of the most attractive spots near Kidderminster

O is Kinver Edge, both for its extensive and varied

scenery, and its weird legends regarding its rock
houses and their troglodyte inhabitants.

Kinver lies about five miles north of Kidderminster,
and a conveyance may be taken to Cookley, half-way.
Tollow the footpath past Debdale Farm to Blakeshall,
and, on coming to the forking of the road near the
Common, take the lane to the left znd the | ath across
the fields in front, Very pleasant and breezy is this
part of our journey, and we are eventually rewarded
on reaching the summit, 411 feet high, by a glorious
expanse of country garnished by Nature with gorse,
broom, heather, and whin. Overlooking the valley we
shall perceive one of the many hill-camps so frequent
in this district, and forming a parallelogram 300 vards
long, 200 yards wide, and covering over 12 acres. It
was defended by an embankment and outer ditch, and
is said to have been constructed by Wulphere, a sub-
King of Mercia from 657 to 675, and is therefore over
1,200 vears old.

In front, a path will be observed leading down the
slope of the hill towards Enville—a charming walk.
Follow it half-way down, where it crosses a similar but
wider path ; here turn left and visit Nanny's Rock,”
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the reputed home of a noted highwayman and desperado
of the eighteenth century, who, with his companions,
lived by plundering the trains of cattle and conveyances
which were constantly travelling from Chester to Bristol.
Irish cattle were in those days landed at Park Gate, in
Cheshire, and driven thence to Chester, Shrewsbury,
London, etc. The three counties—Stafford, Salop, and
Worcester—meet here, so that it was easy for a fugitive
to eross the boundary and so escape arrest. The New
Red Sandstone which forms the southern barrier of the
valley is easily and rapidly cut away, and formed into
cave-dwellings, occupied too often by families who, if
not law-breakers themselves, were in league with the
Knights of the Road and sharers in their plunder. It
was a wild and lawless region, though singularly beauti-
fied by Nature; it was close to the frequented road of
dealers and travellers, whose pockets were generally
well filled, and the many tortuous passages leading to
and from their rock-dwellings afforded a ready means
of escape, even when closely pursued. (Baring Gowld's
bhook ““ Blady's of the Stew-poney ' should be read to
throw a lurid light on this wild district 140 years ago).
The digging of the Canal, by Brindley, about 1780, and
the consequent demand for labour, gradually rescued
it from a name which had made it feared and unvisited,
and to-day Kinver Iidge is one of the most popular
resorts in the vicinity.

How varied is the sandy lane into which we at length
emerge, near Vale's Rock; surely here we are “ Far
from the madding crowd ! Let us follow the lan= to
the west, past Baxter's Monument and Drakelow, to

KIDDERMINSTER,

Wolverley, a village dating back to Saxon times, from
whence we may reach Kidderminster zia Franche ; or
across the fields—one path leading towards the Infirmary,
the other to the “ Old Bear,” near Broadwaters.

Up the Severn —

From Bewdley to Arley.

ni names of our two local rivers, the Severn and
Stour, are of Celtic derivation, and are formed
with but slight alteration from their British
names, Ys Hafren—the Avon—whence Severn: and
Ys dwr—the river—now modificd into Stour. The
three prettiest reaches of the Severn are said to be
—the eurve round the Breiddens above Shrewsbury ;
the valley beneath Apley park and woods above Bridg-
north ; and the winding stretch from Arley to Dowles,
through the old forest of Wyre. This last is in our
immediate neighbourhood.

Take a return ticket from Kidderminster to Bewdley
(4d.), and walk up the river on either bank : the east is
the prettier, but more troublesome from its numerous
stiles ; the west, or Bewdley side, is the old towing path,
and therefore less obstructed.

The first bridge at Bewdley appears to have been
built about 1447 (Henry VL), for in that year the
Bishop of Worcester granted a forty days’ indulgence
to all who would contribute money, materials, or labour
towards completing the new bridge at Bewdley. It
seems that this structure was greatly damaged during
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the Wars of the Roses, and was repaired 1483 (Richard
IIL). The present handsome and well-proportioned
bridge was erected by Thomas Telford, 1798, at that
‘tmlt County Surveyor of Sal op, at a cost of £11,000.

> also built Montford Bridge, four miles above
hury; and the first bridge of iron spanned the Severn
neat Broseley where the irregular town named Ironbridge
has since grown up., ‘L'elford also altered and greatly
improved the high-road between Shatterford and Quat,
making the new road wide, struight, and at a lower
level, with easier gradients than the old road.

A mile above Bewdley, the Tenbury branch of the
Great Western Railway crosses the Severn by the Dowles
Bridge, a slight but pretty bridge of iron resting on
blue-brick piers with stone dressings. Just below the
bridge will be seen the old church of Dowles. 'This
parish was formerly known as Achisey, the island or
land bordering a river planted with oaks, and was,
with its fishery, appropriated to the Priory of ** Moche
Malverne.”” As we ascend the river, the fords are
numerous, and impede the free flow of the river more
and more since the regular dredging of the river has
been discontinued.

On our left we have the forest of Wyre, on our right
Eymore Wood. The Severn Valley Railway skirts the
;ast bank of the river; the meadows on e ther hand
afford rich pasturage, and yield a profusion of wild
flowers and grasses.

The newly-built bridge over the Severn, below the
Tralley ford, carrying tlw pipes for supplying water to
ermm;_lnm from the great Ilan reservoirs near
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Rhayader, was a very difficult task, as no firm foundation
could be found for the piers on either bank. The bridge
consists of one span only, carries six rows of pipes, and
was the most costly pxee.e in the whole course of g7
miles from the reservoirs in Radnor to the terminus at
Frankley.

Half-way between Bewdley and Arley, we find the
river pretty well stopped for traffic by the Falley ford.
1.¢ , the ford at the fall below the island. Here was also
in bygone days a gurges or weir for catching fish.  Just
above the island will be found on the east bank the
remains of an ancient camp, parallelogram in form,
apparently Danish, for defending the passage of the
river at the Seckley ford : and opposite the camp, and
on the north side of a tributary streamlet, may be
traced up the steep hill side an old British track- way
or pack-horse route, leading to the west through Wyre
Forest. The names Lax Lane, Beverey, Hawkbatch
and Owlbatch point to a time when the forest, more
dense and extensive than now, afforded shelter to hawks
and owls, while the river was frequented by salmon and
beavers.

Round the bend of the river and above another island,
the Severn Valley Railway, hitherto on the east bank,
crosses the river by the Victoria Bridge, which was
justly esteemed a triumph of engineering skill at the
time of its erection. It was constructed at the Coal-
brookdale Works, a combination of stone and iron, and
crosses the river at an angle.

A mile up the stream we arrive at Arley, known to our
forefathers as Earnelev and Erneley—the home of the
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eagle, and charmingly situated on the banks of the
river four miles above Bewdley. ‘The manor is first
mentioned as having been presented to the College of
\‘i'olvetliamptml by Wullruna, widow of the Earl of
Northampton, in ggb, and hence in Lichfield diocese
and County of Stafford. (It was restored to the Diocese
of Worcester in 1go5). The Church was built by one
of its first barons, HENrRY DU PORT (Henry IL). In
the reign of Henry I1I., HuBgErT DE BURGH, that king’
Justiciary, became its possessor, and marned Margaret,
sister of William, King of Scotland, ROBERT BURNEL,
who codified English law in the time of FEdward I.,
and who also resided at Acton Burnel in Salop, built
the North Aisle and Chancel. The manor next became
the property of the MorTIMERS, Lords of the Marches,
who held castles at Wigmore, Cleobury, Bridgnorth,
Montgomery and Chirk.

The village is also known as Upper Arley or Over
Arley : near Stourport stands Lower Arley or Arley
Regis.

Walks Around Kidderminster.

I.—HABBERLEY VALLEY AND TRIMPLEY. — T'wo
miles from the town, two-and-half miles from Station.
Wagonettes run frequently from Station and Bull Ring
on Mondays, Wednesdays, and Saturdays; fare, 4d.
rach way. (See Special Ariticle.)

2.—ArLEY (UrpEr).—Take ticket to Bewdley (3d.
single, 4d. return). Walk up Severn to Arley 4. to 5
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miles, and return v7a¢ Pound Green and Button Oak—10
miles in all. (See Special Article.)

3.—ARLEY (UpPER).—Another route, Up Severn
side to Arley, 4. to 5 miles, and return vie Eymore Wood,
Trimpley Green and Habberley Valley—¢ miles. See
route on map 1 mile south of Arley,

4—THE Fox-HOLES.—Follow the Bridgnorth road
through Franche until you come to a brook first on
right and then on left hand. Turn through gate just
past a cottage on left. This walk through the fields
will take vou along the brook side; then up a steep
hill, and via fields to Trimpley Green. Here turn left
and return véa the valley. The walk may he lengthened
and varied by crossing the road at Trimpley Green, turn
left, and follow the fields and lane to Hall's Farm ; by
the side of the brook past Grey Green Farm and the
Crundells, to Severn side just above Bewdley.

5.—Down SEVERN from Bewdley to Stourport—4
miles. Over the bridge and past the church, ap Park
lane, then left across the park, over the stream, and
along the line of trees to the road. Straight on, down
the avenue of trees to Rihbesford Church, the exterior
and interior of which will repay the visitor, especially the
tympanum over the porch door—(See Note). Opposite
the east end will be seen the old rectory tithe-barn, an
immense solid stone building ; and passing through the
iron gate and across the field, you will come to the banks
of the Severn. You may then either follow the course
of the river to Stourport (3} miles), or keep to the high-
road for about three-quarters of a mile, and turn left
up a steep path through the woods to the summit of
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Stagbury, whence a charming bird’s-eye view of the
Severn valley may be obtained.
NOTE.

St. Teonard's Church, Ribbesford, dates back to
Norman times, probably to William IT. or Henry I. Tts
chief peculiarities are the oak pillars supporting the roof
and separating the Nave from the South Aisle, and the
tympanum over the entrance through the porch, on the
north side. “This tympanum, thoroughly preserved for
centuries by a coating of plaster which was carefully
removed about fifty years ago, represents a Norman
archer, who, aiming at a deer, missed it, and lodged his
arrow in another animal, apparently a beaver.

Many ol these ancient architectural carvings enshrine
somie quaint local history or custom : and in alluding to
this, Nash says : ** The villeins of the manor were bound
to furnish weirs and nets for catching fish, and proper
implements of hunting: and the plenty of game here
formerly might be alluded to by the sculpture over the
north porch.” © Noake says : ** The most likely supposi-
tion is that as Ribbesford in those days belonged to the
Monastery of Worcester, . . the sculpture is merely
an embodiment of this leading feature of the locality
where an abundance of game might be procured. The
Normans were in the habit of perpetuating in stone
these local peculiarities, and at a much later date the
hosses of Gothic churches represent the botanical
productions.’” Quaint remnants of monkish wood-
sarving may also be seen at the east end of the Nave ;
and carvings— by some thought to be emblematical—on
the stone capitals of the shafts in the north porch,
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Some of the stained windows are rare examples of
ecclesiastical art, and some fragments of ancient glass
are specially rich in colour.

The visitor will not fail to recognise the loving care
with which the churchyard is kept, a credit to all con-
nected with it,

6.—From BEWDLEY TO TICENELL & STAGBURY—
5 miles, Over the bridge and same route as No, 5 until
the road is crossed. Here turn right to Horse-hill Farm,
where stood until 20 years ago the old Gospel oak of
Ribbesford—(Se¢e Note). Follow the lane, from which
commanding views will be obtained of the Severn valley
and as far as the Clents. At the bend in the lane to
right, keep straight on along a timber track which will
eventually bring vou out on the shoulder of Stagbury,
and so on to the high-road below. Turn left for fifty
vatds or so, and then follow the path by the river side
to Stourport bridge. The termination ‘' bury " in
Worcestershire hills shows that at some period it was
an occupied and defended summit: eg. Woodbury,
Stagbury. :

This walk may be varied and lengthened by following
the road at the afore-mentioned turn to the rtight,
descending the hill, crossing the Gladder brook, a stiff
climb, then take first turn to left (a cottage will be on
vour left), down a curious lane where a brook occupies
the roadway, and so back to Severn, or across the
meadows to Areley Kings church.

NorE—GosprrEr, OAKS,

There are, or were, several of these in our neighbour-

hood ;(—The Orp Oaks at Shatterford (recently blown
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down) and at Ribbesford; the Arostie's Oak at
Abberley, unfortunately destroyed about 1740 ; and the

MrTrE OAk at Crossway Green, Hartlebury.

They were generally at the junction of the parishes,
and served as landmarks and parish boundaries. TUnder
their wide-spreading boughs the Gospel was wont to be
preached ere churches were in existence, and perambula-
tions of the parishes were duly made from one landmark
to another. The poet Herrick says i—

“ Dearest, bury me under that holy oak, the gospel tree ;
Where, though thou seest not, thou mayst think upon me,
When thou yearly goest in procession.’

These processions were the perambulations of the parish
boundaries, which took place on the Rogation days each
spring-time, and served to preserve the knowledge of
the limits of the parish, and as occasions when all could
unite in common prayer for preservation from war,
disease, and famine,

The ArostLi's Oak at Abberley is one of the many
localities claimed as the meeting-place of Augustine and
the Welsh bishops, A.D. 603.

The Mrirrr Oak still stands by the road-side at
Crossway Green, 5} miles south of Kidderminster, on the
Worcester road, and marks the extent of the domains

‘belonging to the See of Worcester. When Elizabeth

made one of her ' progresses "’ to Hartlebury Castle, the
Bishop accompanied her on her departure as far as the
Mitre Oak, i.e. to the limit of his demesne.
7.—HARvVINGTON HALl, was the old moated Eliza-
bethan mansion belonging to, and probably built by,
Sir Nicholas Throckmorton, one of the Secretaries of
State to that Queen. Iike so many of the residences
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of the Romanists in this district, it lies away from,
and vet within easv reach of, the main roads, and was
furnished with a Chapel and hiding-places in the roof,
where their priests might find refuge if required. Adjoin-
ing the Hall is a Roman Catholic Chapel and residence
for the priest.

Follow the Bromsgrove road past the station to just
beyond Stone Church, then through the fields to left, and
across the brook to Harvington. Return vie Muster
Green—~0O miles,

8. —Sroxe Tinyry and Finney rough—4 miles.
Go along the Bromsgrove road to the foot of Comberton
Hill. At stream turn left over fields ; left again along
rails and past Middle Dunclent along the foot of Mount
Segg.  Cross the stream and hear to left by Danesford
and Bissell Wood, and come into Birmingham road near
Park Hall, Then left, and so back home.

This walk may be varied by ascending Stone Finney.
At end of two fields bevond the wood, turn left through
one field, then diagonally half-way across field to right,
then left over the common and rabbit-warren near the
Mearse Farm, and so to foot of Mount Segg.

g—ArErLEY KiNcs, Redstone Hermitage, and
Lincombe Weir. Over Stourport bridge, first tum to
right, and then up the steep hill on left to Areley Kings
Church. Walk round the church and view Severn
Valley. Walk in (key at Rectory, adjoining the church-
vard). ‘The church, which is most complete, has been
recently restored, and dates from Norman days. Notice
the font inscribed “* Layamon's,” who was priest here
during the reign of John, and the author of “ Brut,”
one of our earliest books. * Brut' was a translation
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of the writings of the Norman Wace, and is both allitera-
tive and rhythmical in style, and was professedly a
history of England from its earliest times. Of over
30,000 lines, less than fifty words are Norman, ILayamon
was a recluse of Redstone Hermitage, and his pulpit in
the sandstone rock existed until quite recently, when
it was ruthlessly destroyed by pea-pickers. In the
churehyard may be scen a number of blocks of sandstone
inseribed—
" Lithologema cquare ?
Reponitur : Sir Harry,"

which may be translated, “If it is asked why this
collection of stones ? it is answered, * Sir Harry." "

Just bewond the churchyard is the old school-room,
now converted into a stable. Round it are the staples
and rings to which the horses were fastened, belonging
to distant farmers who had driven to service.

Now retrace your steps, cross the main road, and
follow the old road, now disused, which led to the
Redstone ferry, previous to the building of Stourport
bridge in 1770. Here the body of Prince Arthur
was conveyed when brought from Ludlow to Worcester
in 1502. Notice the size of the old ferry-inn, fully
occupied by travellers when Severn was in flood.

Ascend the path leading to the summit of the hill, and
then hall-a-mile further to the side of Lincombe Weir.

10.—HArRTLEBURY ComMmoN. Railway ticket to
Hartlebury, 38d. Go straight through village to Hartle-
bury Castle, the home of the Bishop of Worcester,
surrounded formerly by a moat. Then left, following
the stream through Hill Edge copse, and skirting the
common to Titton, Ascend the hillside on left for view
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of Lincombe Weir, and then follow path to river, whence
one may return 'either along the towing-path or wia
stream to Titton, and while away a pleasant hour on
the dunes of the common. Walk either to trams, or
home wia lane and fields along the ridge of the hill to
Hoobrook. !

II.—WYRE FOREST AND DowLEs Brookx., Take a
return ticket to Bewdley, 4d. Then over bridge and
along the road to Cleobury, steep ascent for two miles
but affording pleasant and extensive views of the forest,
Abberley, ete. At finger-post turn left to Cleobury, left
again at top of Lemp-brook Hill, and so to Furnace
Mill, an ideal spot for the photographer after rain has
swollen the brook. Follow the stream down through
the forest to its junction with the Severn, one mile above
Bewdley. Several mills will be passed, pointing to a
time when Agquafluens was a power .in the land, and
when every farmer was compelled by law to grind his
corn at his lord's mill.

12.—KINVER EDGE. Go along Stourbridge Road as
far as Old Bear Inn, turn left by Broadwaters Pools, and
across fields, road, and Lea Castle Park. On emerging
through the hole in the wall into the road, turn left for
forty yards, then right over canal and Stour by side of
disused iron-works, then through the coppice and fields
into the lane. Up a long gentle rise to Blakeshall. At
forking of roads turn left across the fields to the Fdge.
Again left by Nanny's Rock, Vale's Rock, and so to
Baxter's monument, Drakelow, Wolverley, and home.
(See Special Article.)

13—MonsTER’s Hirn. Four miles North of
Kidderminster, on the road to Bridgnorth, stauds
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embosomed in Arley wood, the remarkable geological
protuberance, known as “ Monster's Hill "—possibly
so called from some gigantic wild animal, bear or wolf,
having made his lair in the dark and gloomy recesses
which lie at the foot of the towering granite forming
the cap of the exuded volcanic mass—and still
clasping the gnarled roots of ancient vews, and en-
shrouded with an overgrowth of hardy ferns and
licheus.

Roberts in his “ Rocks of Worcestershire "' thus
deseribes it—** Shatterford is mainly composed of dhu-
stone (dhu-black), and is an outcrop of purs basalt,
contorted and upheaved into every imaginable form,
and which seems to belong to the close of the Carboni-
ferous epoch. As may be expected, this intrusion of
volcanic rocks among the coal measures has made great
changes, roasting, tilting, and -altering them, until
they are as black as the basalt itself and abundantly
interspersed with fossilized ferns.”

Following the path through the wood from the quarry
whence the basalt has been extracted for road-making,
we may perhaps discover the remains of an old Roman
camp, occupied by those old warriors during the summer
months as an agreeable sylvan change from their pent-up
quarters in some town. Nash says of it *' A large Roman
camp also remains here, situated in Arley wood, being
nearly an exact square, with double, and on one side treble
ditches. It was possibly the work of Ostorious (cirea 51
AD,), who fortified many places near, and upon the
banks of the Severn during his conflict with the Silures."”

The remains of an old road runs close to the camp,
along which herds of Irish and Welsh cattle were
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formerly driven, after having been landed at Park-gate
in Cheshire. The farmhouse known as Castlehill is
said to havelbeen a favourite retreat of King John ;

it was one of the chain of hill summits occupied during
the fTOntlel’ wars of Henry IV. and Owen Glyndwr ;

and in the forest recesses many Royalist fugmve‘; are
said to have been secreted after the * crow ning mercy
of Worcester "' 16571,

Cycle Rides.

I.—TEWKESBURY. Recommended to cross the
bridge at Worcester, and ride »ia Upton and Forthamp-
ton; cross Severn at Lower Lode (by which Queen
Margaret escaped after battle, 1471); walk down river-
side to Deerhurst, one of the most perfect Saxon churches
in the land—Odda’s Chapel. Back to Lower Lode, ride
into Tewkesbury, visit Abbey—fine Norman architecture
and mortuary chapels. 65 miles,

2.—Tonc anp BoscoBrr, »ie Bridgnorth, Sutton
Maddock, Shifnal, Tong Church (Elihu Burritt ealls it
the “ Westminster Abbey of the Midlands '), Boseobel ;
view House, chapel, hiding-places in cheese-room and
stairs, seeret exit through cupboard, and Roval Oak.
Return vig Codsall, Wergs, Trysull, Himley, Wall-heath
and Stew-poney. 065 miles,

3.—TENBURY AND LEOMINSTER, #iz Clow's ‘Top,
Newnham and Tenbury (fine wood-carving, t - mbs and
windows in Burford Church), Wooferton, Rrimfield,
Leofric’s Minster, now pronounced Lemster—two
churches under one roof—Norman and Farly English,
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Quaint carving on stone capitals, ball-flower ornament,
Ducking-stool. Old Town Hall on recreation ground.
A fine but hard ride. If tired, train mayv be taken at
Newnham at 4.560 or 0.57 to Bewdley, for self and
cycle, 1s. 6d. Total distance, 60 miles.

4—Luprow anxp CLuwN, via Bewdley, Cleobury,
Clee Hills, Dangerous descents here and there, but
commanding view {rom summit of ridge, and easy coast
from Angel Inn to Ludlow. View St. Lawrence's,
Church, Castle, and the round Norman Church. Ride
vta Bromfield to Stokesay, a mediacval combination of
moated castle and monastery : Craven Arms and Clun.
Fine Norman church and Castle of Fitz-Alan (Stephen).
Visit British Camps at Bury Ditches, three miles north,
and Caer Caradoe, three miles south, amongst the finest
in the country. Retumn via Corve Dale and Bridgnorth.
About 85 miles. An interesting two days' ride.

5.—StourporT, WITLEY, Stanford Bridge, Teme
Valley, to Ham Bridge. Return wia Martley, Ockeridge,
Holt Bridge, and Ombersley. About 30 miles.

6.—TENBURY, vla Stourport, Witley, Stanford
Bridge, Fox Inn. Return via Teme Valley, through
Rochford and Fastham, cross Teme, and on to Lindridge,
Hundred House, and Stourport. Recommended. 40
miles.

7.—BRIDGNORTH, via Bewdley, Kinlet, and Billings-
ley. Return via Quat and Shatterford. 33 miles. Fine.

8.—BRIDGNORTH (another), via Stewponey, Enville,
Highgate Common, Halfpenny Green, Claverley, Wor-
field. Return as in No, 7. About 36 miles, Recom-
mended.
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Scholastic.

IDDERMINSTER is well supplied with schools both
Elementary and Secondary.

The Kidderminster Grammar School bears the
name of King Charles 1., who granted its charter, though
it traces its foundation as far back as the reign of Queen
Elizabeth. It wasformerly held in the Chantry atta hed
to St. Mary’s Church, but was removed to its present
site about 1850. The school buildings are well arranged,
have a good teaching staff, and fields for games, etc.
Arrangements are also made for scholars to attend the
Schools of Science and Art, swimming baths, etc. Both
boarders and day scholars are admitted.

Other Grammar Schools in the neighbourhood are
those of Wolverley.

Wolverley School is situated about two miles to the
north of Kidderminster. It was founded in 10620 by
William Sebright, who left properties in Londoen which
supply the greater part of its large endowment.

The School was originally in the village, but the
Governors acquired a new building site in 1881 on a
hill near Wolverley Parish Church, and have since built
a large School there. There are two boarding houses,
one in charge of the Headmaster and the other in charge
of the Second Master.

The School was reorganised in 1904, when the present
Headmaster (Mr. R. €. ILucas, B.A., B.Sc.) was ap-
pointed. He and his colleagne (Rev. A. Cecil Knight,
M.A.) were both house-masters at Epsom College, and
Wolverley boys now have the advantage of a public
school education. The number of boys, which on
the arrival of the present Headmaster was 23, has
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already been increased to 60. The boys are pre-
pared for the Cambridge ILocal examinations, and
the fact that 2o boys passed (some in Honours)
at Christmas, 1900, speaks well for the effectiveness of
the teaching.

The Governors give Entrance Scholarships for boarders
each July, and this makes it possible for those parents
whose means are limited to obtain a first-rate education
for their sons at a boarding school for moderate fees.
Scholarships on leaving are also offered to those who
win University Scholarships or take high places in other
open competitive examinations straight from the School.
The boys have a large cricket and football field, and
enjoy the use of a 300-vard rifle range in the summer.
They are all drilled twice a week and possess a gymnasium
and carpenter’s shap.

For girls there is an excellent High School at Proud
Cross, recently placed under the supervision of the
Waorcester County Council,

Kidderminster borough is a separate and independent
educational unit, though working in harmony with the
County Authorities.

Its School of Art has established and maintained
an honourable and high position in the country for
fifty years, fostering artistic design and harmony of
colours ; while the School of Science which dates back
to 1887 is well fitted with lecture rooms, chemical
laboratories, dye-house, etc.

A large and well-appointed Reading Room for news-
papers; a Reference. and a Free Library, form part
of the block of Municipal buildings adjoining the Schools
of Science and Art, opposite the General Post Office,
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Thead Mdastet:
. C. Lucas, 1B.EL
(Lond.), JB.5¢. (Lond.)

Late House Master
amd Senior Modern
Language Master at
—Epsom College

Second Master:
Rev. E, Cecil Rnight,
. EL (Cantab.)

Late House Master
at Epsom College.

Hassistant Adasters:
C. A1, E. Tbish, 18.5c¢,

(Lond.)
G. C. Frwin, JB.AH,
(@zxon.)

Assisted by three
non-resident masters,

~ SCHOOL GROUP.3

Tmz School is situated in the country, on the topTof
a hill, about 3 miles from Kidderminster Railway
Station (G.W.R.)

The excellence of the endowment enables the
Governors to offer a first rate education of a public
school type for very moderate fees.

A Boarding School
for Bops.

mHE School has its own
I Gymmns‘ium,S;m:ltul'fun'l.

Chemical Laboratory,
Playing Fields, Carpenters’
Shop, Out-door  Bathing
Establishment & Rifle Range.
Boys may enter the school
between the ages of 8 and 16.

Particulars of Scholarships
for boarders, who wish to
enter the school, may be ob-
tained from the Headmaster.

The Governors offer leaving
scholarships to those who win
University Scholarships or
take high places in the ex-
aminations for entrance to
Woolwich or Sandhurst.

The numbers have more
than doubled during the last
three years.
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The Carpet Industry.

0 account of the town of Kidderminster would be
N complete without some special mention of the
trade with which it is so intimately associated.
Kidderminster has been the home of the carpet industry
for nearly two centuries, for although the manufacture
of Brussels carpet does not date back much more than
a hundred and seventy years, even before that time
the town had been engaged in the production of
materials for floor-covering, and at the present time,
although there are other carpet-manufacturing centres
in the North of England and in Scotland, and though
the industry flourishes in France, Germany, and the
[United States, Kidderminster still claims to be the
centre of the carpet trade of the world,

Of the various fabries made at the present day in
the town, precedence is naturally accorded to Brussels,
the manufacture of which was first introduced f{rom
Belgium to Wilton, whence it was soon adopted here,
together with the velvet fabric which takes its name
from the latter place. Though these two articles are
still the staple product of the town, thev have had to
vield greatly in popular favour to Axminster, which is,
of course, manufactured in large quantities and various
qualities in the local factories. Besides these well-known
makes, there are the Chenille Axminster ; the Tapestry,
or printed carpet; the Kidderminster or Art square;
and even the Hand-tufted Seamless Axminster: while
special fabrics that are made under patents, or are
modifications of the c¢lasses mentioned above, are
produced by most makers.

The first Brussels and Wilton looms were worked by
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hand, a boy heing emploved to lift the coloured threads
as required for each ' lash " or row of the work : and
the looms were generally operated in the home of the
weaver. All this, however, was changed by the intro-
duction of the power loom, which tended to cheapen and
inerease producti(m to a great extent, and to cause the
assembling of looms in a well-built shed.

Axminster power looms were of a good deal later date,
being introduced into Kidderminster from the United
States about 1877. The Chenille Carpet loom, more
particularly in its application to wide seamless carpets,
has been a comparatively recent development, but its
productions seem to be rapidly increasing in popularity.

The development of the carpet trade in Kidderminster
for the past thirty or forty vears has been mainly along
the lines of mechanical invention, and the manufacturers
have been quick to take advantage of any improvement
in the method of making carpets, whether of local or
external origin. Keen rivalry of this kind, accentuated
by bitter competition of French, German, Belgian,
Austrian, and Oriental carpets, has tended to produce
in Kidderminster carpet-manufacturing plant of the
most ingenious workmanship and of the highest etficiency.

Visitors who are interested in ** seeing how things are
made "—and few manufactures are more interesting than
that of carpets—will be well repaid for any trouble thev
may take in obtaining an entrance into one of the many
carpet factories of the town, of which the following does
not ¢laim to be an exhaustive list.

Messrs. Brintons, Limited, whose offices face the Post
Office, are manufacturers of Brussels, Wilton, and
Axminster carpets in various qualities. The firm was
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founded in 1819 by Mr. Henry Brinton, the father of
Mr. John Brinton, the present Chairman of the Company,
who has been actively associated with the business for
no less than sixty-five vears. The firm was formed into
a limited liability company in 1881, and the present
directors include two grandsons of the founder. Tts
progress has been steady, about 140 Brussels and Wilton
looms heing employed at the present time, while within
the last few years an Axminster Department of con-
siderable importance has been added.

Reference has been made to mechanical developments
in the carpet trade, and Messrs. Brintons have been
very fortunate in this respect, having developed a
Patent Asminster [Loom of remarkable ingenuity, which
has enabled them to cater for the public taste in this
fabric by means of an exceptional range of qualities.
One of the looms working under the patents produces
a carpet fifteen feet in width, and is claimed to be the
largest loom of its kind in the world. Messrs. Brintons
have also established, within the past few years, a
department for the manufacture of hand-tufted real
Axminster carpets, which are now gaining a reputation
under the name of " Kildare." These are made of
practically any size in one piece, and are knotted by
hand in precisely the same way as the Oriental carpets
are and have been made for centuries.

In addition to their carpet looms, Messrs, Brintons
possess a woollen spinning plant, designed to meet their
own requirements for woollen varns. They were among
the first people in the town to adopt electrical motive
power for looms, and at the present time are contem-
plating a general electrification of their works.

Messrs, Cooke Brothers have been established at the
Worcester Cross Works since 1go2 for the manufacture
of Chenille Axminster carpets and rugs. Starting in a
modest way with eight looms, most of which were worked
by hand, they have now increased to 40 loonis, and their
plant contains some of the most modern types of
machinery used in the Chenille trade. Their various
fabrics include the well-known qualities of Dhamar,
Premier, Ideal, and Felipse Rugs, and Shahrud Axmin-
ster squares. 'This latter article is the most recent
production of the firm, being a very heavy deep-pile
carpet, which does justice to the most delicate shades
or the richest Turkey effects. A further speciality is
the range of hilliard and corridor rugs with fine Oriental
colourings. The distribution of these productions is
effected by means of a staff of travellers, supplemented
by warehouses in London, Glasgow, and Manchester.

Messrs, James Humphries and Sons, Limited, are
manufacturers of Brussels, Wilton, and Axminster
carpets, and pogsess over 120 looms.

Messts, Harrison, Kempson and Co., Limited, are
fortunate in oceupying a very well built modern factory
at Long Meadow Mills, and are energetic manufacturers
of Brussels, Wilton, and Axminster.

Messrs. ‘I and A. Naylor, of Green Street, are the
only local makers of the kind of carpet once known by
the name of the town, but their special fabries are now
the “ Roman " and other Art squares. They are also
woollen spinners.

The Carpet Manufacturing Company comprises the
two firms of Morton and Sons and Richard Smith and
Sons, hoth of whom are manufacturers of Brussels and
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Wilton, and of Chenille and tufted Axminster, seamless
and i the piece. Messrs, Smith also make twill and
Dutch carpets, and finger and beam rugs.

Messrs. Tomkinson and Adam, who are the original
patentees of power-loom Axminster carpets, are the
lareest makers of this fabiic and of the Chenille Axmin-
ster in the town, with 156 looms for the former and 78
for the latter. They have also several wide looms for
the manufacture of tufted Axminster, which are marvels
of workmanship and are operated in a specially con-
structed building.

The Victoria Carpet Company is the only firm manu-
facturing tapestry and velvet squares in the town. It has
only been established within the last few years, but has
gained a good name for the excellence of its products.

The firm of Messrs. Woodward, Grosvenor and Co.,
Limited, holds a high position in the carpet world, and
has magnificent offices and warehouses, which the visitor
to the town eannot miss as he enters Kidderminster.

The firm was established in 1864, succeeding the then
old firm of Messrs. Henry Woodward and Sons, and the
present head of the firm, Mr. Grosvenor, was associated
with Mr. H. T. Woodward in establishing the present
concern. The Stour Vale Works were the locale of the
enterprise, and a commencement was made with 14
Brussels looms and the necessary concomitants, the
number of hands being about 50. Extension after
extension has heen made, till now the finm has 120
looms and finds. occupation for a large number of
employces of both sexes. In 1883 the firm, just before
the lamented death of Mr. Woodward, entered into
possession of the very fine buildings at Worcester Cross,
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not as a substitute for, but in addition to the Stour
Vale Works, where the Brussels and Wilton carpets are
still made, while the Axminster looms are located in
the modern and up-to-date  sheds’ immediately at
the tear of the offices, show-rooms, and designers'
studios. The Brussels sheds are also most commodious,
and the machinery and plant is of the best. The dye-
house, with the latest mechanical contrivances for
securing perfection in the very important process of
dyeing, is a model, and has attracted much attention for
its compactness and the excellence of its appliances.

The carpets made by the firm are well known through-
ott the world. 'Their carpets have a reputation second
to none, and are now made by the fitm in practically
all qualities to meet the demands of all classes of buyers.
The cut-pile Wiltons and Axminsters have been very
popular of recent years ; these are made in large quanti-
ties by the firm.

Of all the detailed processes of manufacture it is
impossible to treat, but it suffices to say that the latest
machinerv and methods, and manv special patents, are
employed by Messrs. Woodward, Grosvenor and Co.,
Iimited, who are in the happy position of having works
of the most compact, commodious, and convenient
character, enabling the firm to turn out goods as perfectly
finished as artistically designed.

Space does not suffice for mention of other factories,
or of the allied and supplementary industries such as
Worsted and Woollen Spinning, and the manufacture of
various mechanical specialities for the carpet trade; all
of which, however, combine to render Kidderminster a
spot of exceptional interest as an industrial centre.
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BRINTONS LIMI‘TED’ _Kidder;inster.

| 200880000000 000

TELEGRAMS !
| “Brintons, Kidderminster."
TELEPHONE 5.
Agencies—'asgow, Patis, Herlin, Lishon,
Copenhagen, Athens, Lnnﬁrmmuople.
Alexandna, Toronto Capetown, el
hourne, Shonghai, Tokio.

London Warehouse—
10, 11, 12, IVV LANE,
TELEGRAME ; ** BRINTONS, LoNpon.
TELEPHONE 7520 CENTRAL.

Manchester Warehouse —
3, MoSLEY STREET,
TELEGRAMS ! “BRINTONS, MANCHESTER."
TELEPHONE 4734,

Glasgotw Warehouse -
142, (JUEEN STREET.

4 ¢ b BRINTONS, GLASGOW.
SPHONE 3121 ROVAL,

MANUFACTURERS OF.
AXMINSTER, BRUSSELS, and WILTON CARPETING,
SEAMLESS AXMINSTER CARPETS, and of
SEAMLESS HAND-MADE AXMINSTER CARPETS & RUGS, S i
WOOLLEN SPINNERS. |dPeeedreece

PPEPO®

f" \




The Stour Vale Mills.—Messrs. Woodward, Grosvenor & Co.
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Telegrams : Telephone :
“Cooke Bros. Kidderminster " 121, Kidderminster,
“ Clunn, London.” 4921, Holborn, London.

COOKE BROS., |

Axminster Carpet

and

Rug Manufacturers.

LONDON - 14, 15, Carthusian St., E.C.
GLASGOW - 142, Queen Street.
MANCHESTER - 32, Faulkner Street.

WORCESTER CROSS WORKS,
KIDDERMINSTER.
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Printed and Published by

W. maie & Sons, .,
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Aberdeen, Colwyn Bay, Newbury, Sidmouth,
Bournemouth, Aldershot, Dawlish, Newport, LW, Skegness,
Chnstchurch, Axe Valley, Devizes, Newquay, Southampton,
Folkestone, Bangor, Exeter, Newton Abbot, Southend-on- Ses,
Glasgow & West Const, f/:_‘) Barnstaple, Exmouth, North of Ireland, Southport,
Isle of Man, Barry & Barry Dock, Farnham, Northwich, St. Albans,
Isle of Wight, Bedford, Harrogate, Ukeimmpion, St. Austell,
New Forest, B:d:furd, Herne Bay, Oxford, Sudbury,
Ulymouth, Blackpoal, Hexham, Peak District, Swanage,
Salisbury, Bodmin, Honiton; Penarth, Teignmouth,
o5 1rhnrouf¥h Bridlington, llfracombe, Penzance, Tenby,
Smuh.nmpton Bridport, Keswick, Ramsgate, Thames Valley,
Southsea, Budleigh Salterton, Kidderminster, Reading, Tiverton,
Price 1/= net. Burnham, Lake District, Redruth, Tonbridge,
Post Free 1/4, Buxton, l.aunceston, Reizate & Redhill, Torrington,
Cambridee, Loughborough, Rhyl, Trowbridge,

2 Cardigan Day, Luton, Rugby, Tunbridge Wells
Devonshire, Chard, Malvern, Saltburn & Redcar, Veutnor,
Hampshire, \Qg Cleethorpes, Marlborough, Sandown, Weymouth,
Somerset. : Clevedon, Mareate, Seaton, Whitby,

Price 1/- Cockermouth, Matlock, Shanklin, Wilts and Dorset,
Post Free 1/6, Cork & South of Minehead, Sherborne, Winchester,
Treland, Morpeth, Stratf'd-upon-Avon York.

Ohtainable of all Local Booksellers and Appointed Agents throughout the country;
& Son's Bookstalls, Everywhere, or direct of the Publishers,

Messrs. Wyman

All uniform in Size and Style containing 30 to 50 High Class Photographic Views

Remittances from abroad should be made by Post Office Order.

Price 6d. net.

through W, H. Smith & Son's and

Post Free 9d.

WHOLESALE: AGENTS— W. MATE & SONS, Ltd-,
LONDON:-E Marlborough & Co., 51, Old Bailey,
MANCHESTER:—Abel Heywood @ Son, 56/8 Oldham Street. BOURNEMOUTH.



W. ROWNTREE & SONS,

House and Estate
Agents,

Send for Particulars of
the best
Furntsuen and
UnrurnNisaED Houses.

Y

House Furnishers,
@hina and Glass
Merchants,

REMOVAL & STORAGE
CONTRACTORS.

A Series of FURNISHED
Rooms with original
designs in Furniture
and Decoration,
on the first floor,

TEA AND WRITING ROOM
ON THB GROUND FLOOR,

Established in the Relgn of King George 111,

Scarborough,

And at YORK.

©he Post Order
SDepartment

is under the personal
supervision of members
of the firm.

Ovders are despatched
by the-next Mail or
Train following the
receipt of the order,

A full range of Patterns and
Sketches free on application,
Carringe paid on all Orders of
£1 and upwards throughout*the
United RKingdam,

DRESSMAKERS,
Milliners,
Ladies’ Tailors,
Gentlemen’s

Outfitters.

Mourning Orders
Promptly attended to.

Scarborough, the most charming Health Resort.

COOL IN SUMMER.

MILD IN WINTER,



COCKERMOUTH, KESWICK and
PENRITH RAILWAY.
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EXTENSIVE THROUGH
TRAIN SERVICE and
THROUGH BOOKING
ARRANGEMENTS with
all principal places,

TOURIST TICKETS from
all parts to KESWICK
and TROUTBECK (for
ULLSWATER).

CIRCULAR TOUR
TICKETS from Euston
and other Stations to
LAKE DISTRICT,
including KESWICK &
WINDERMERE.

WEEK-END and TEN
DAY TICKETS from L.
&N. W, L &Y., N.E,
and Midland Stations.

During Summer Months
the following Exoursion
arrangements :

WEEKLY EXCURSIONS
to and from LONDON.

CIRCULAR TOURS over
all parts of LAKE
DISTRICT.

PLEASURE PARTY
TICKETS, ete., ete,
P. THOMPSON,
Seerctary & General Manager.

BUXTON, DERBYSHIRE,

Buxton Hydropathic

Telegraphic Address: National Telephone
“ COMPORTABLE, Buxtom." No. §

ITUATED over one thousand
feet above the Sea Level
Sheltered from the North and
East. Overlooking the Public
— Gardens, and close to the —
celebrated Mineral Wells and

HVDRQPM'H 1c Batus of every
description, Electric Baths,
Massage, Electro-Massage, and
the Nauheim Treatment.
o

Cinderella Dance every
Saturd

¥

Concert every Sunday.

Magnificent Public Rooms.
American Elevator.
Electric Light.

H. LOMAS, Managing Director.




Residential Hotel and

Chat SWO l'th y Boarding Establishment,

OPEN ALL THE YEAR.

SANDOWN BAY, ISLE OF WIGHT.

Chatswor[h is a well appointed nnd newly decorated Establishment,
Handsome Public Rooms, Comfortable Smoke Room and
Cosy Lounge, Spacious Corridors, Splendid Recreation Room, Parguet Flooring,
Electric Light throughout, Baths—Hot and Cold. Good Cycle Accommodation
Lock up).
Every Home Comfort.

BOATING AND BATHING
EXCELLENT.

Private Grounds for Lawn Tennis
and Croquet. Sanitary arrangements
are of the most modern and perlfect
deseription. Certificate.

one of the finest
buildings on the South Coast, and is well
sulted as a residence for all in search of
health, rest or recreation, Is delightfully
situated, commanding fine views of Sea
and Downs, one minute from Esplanade,
and fAve from Pier, at which all Steamers
call during the Season.

THE CHATSWORTH OMNIBUS meets all trans,

within easy distance.

Chatsworth is admitted to be {*q

Fine Golf Links
Conches leave Chatsworth daily during the Season for
excursions to all parts of Interest.

Maoderate and Illustrated Tariff on application,

Special Winter Terms
Nat, Telephone No, 0181,

rom 31/6 inclusive.

Misses Jannings & Catt. Proprietresses,

BELFAST.
Grand Central Hotel.

The Finest Hotel in Ireland.

200 :: Most
Rooms, Central
Tl Position.

E};ﬁttﬂe Excel-
through- lent
out. | Cuisine.

{ Moder-
Eierneer ate

0 Y

all Floors Tarifl.

Omnibuses from the Hotel attend the arrival and
departure of all Steamers and Trains.

TELEGRAMS: “ GRAND CENTRAL,” BELFAST.

Cook’s Coupons accepted.




FURNESS

RAILWAY.

Blackpool =: Lakes

In conpection with the
Popular Fast Paddle Steamers " | ADY MARGARET," or "LADY EVELYN."

Every Week-day from Wllitsuntide to End of September.

This Combination
provides

Outer Circular Tour !

By SEA, RAIL, LAKE and COACH, Day's Pic-nic
embracing Tour,

Furness Abbey, Windermere Lake & Coniston.

Time is allowed for Luncheon at the Pavilion, Lake Side Station, Windermere.

BLACHPOOL (Talb{w Road) Train dep. 10-0 am
LEETWOOD ........... Steamer dep, 10-30 4
BARBOW (l'lamsdun Dk) Sleamer arr) 1145 .,
arr, 12.45 p.m

WINDERMERE (Lake Side) | 1fain . arc, 1245 p»
AMBLESIDE v ceisssnsssisn Coach dep, 3-15 &
CONISTON . vovs Train dep.  6-0 "
BARROW k) Steamer dep, 7-0 "
FLEETWOOD <.+ Steamer are’ 815 4
BLACKPOOL ............ Train arr. 846

mes subject to altcratluu

INCLUSIVE FARES FOR THE ROUND—

15t Class and Saleon 3rd Class and F. Cabin
From BLACKPOOL 1 7/6
From FLEETWOOD 10/~ 6/9

Tickets are available for a week with break of journey at any
Station on the circle,
Tickets and particulars of sailings ma vbe ohnmed at Messrs, Thos. Cook & Son's

20 CcOACH & STEAM YACHT

{ Tours trough Lkeland

EVERY WEEK-DAY
From Whitsuntide to end of September.

The following are the Principal Tours:

No. 1.—Outer Circular Tour, embracing Windermere Lake, Furness
Abbey, and Coniston. —Fare from 5/3.

No. 2.—Inner Circular Tour, embracing Furness Abbey, Coniston
Lake (Gondola), and Crake Valley.—Fare from a/3.

No, 4,—Middle Circular Tour, embracing Windermere Lake, the
Crake Valley and Coniston Lake, Fare from s/g.

No. 5.—Red Bank and Grasmere Tour, via Kmbleside and Skel-
with Force,—Fare from z/g.

No., 10.—Round the Langdales and Dungeon Ghyll Tour, via
Ambleside, Colwith Force, Grasmere and Rydal.—Fare from 5/,

No. 13.—The Five LaKes Circular Tour, viz, :~Windermere,
Rydal, Grasmere, Thirlmere and Derwentwater,—
Fare from 11/6.

No. 14,~Wastwater Tnur, via Seascale, and Gosforth Churchyard

iross, ALD. 630, Fare from 4/6.

No. 15.—The Six LaKay Circular Tour, viz :—Windermere,
Rydal, Grasmere, Thirlmere, Derwentwater and
Ullswater.—Fare from 11/3. 2

No. 16,—The Duddon Valley Tour. via Broughton-in-Furness,
Ulpha and Seathwaite,—Fare from a/g.

No. 19.—Across the Ferry Tour, via Esthwaite Water, Hawkshead,
erry and Storrs,—Iare from 3/6.

For further particulars see the Lump:\m s Ilustrated 'l‘nurq P-ugrmmu.,
to be had gratis at all Furness Railway Stations; also from Mr. F. ]J. Ramsden,
Superintendent of the Line, Barrow- in.Furness ; and at Messrs, Thos. Cook & Son's
Ol']u.u; algo at the prine l[nl Bookstalls.

The PALETLE ALBU'vl. illustrating the Tours in colours, price 6d,
PICTURE POSTCARDS ot the Lake District ('\Iew Series) 6 Cards for 3d., may be obtained at Furness Railway

Stations, and on the Company's Steamers
Barrow-iN-FurNEss, June, 1907,

also at Furness Abbey Hotel and the principal Bookstalls,

ALFRED ASLETT, Secretary and General Manager,



The
Garden
City of
the North

Tllusteated Handbook Free
on application to the Town
Clerk, Southport,

SouTHPORT with adjoining suburbs (population 70,000
exclusive of visitors) is a high-class residential City
on the West Coast, offers unique attractions and
advantages to holiday malers and health seekers.

It has a record of bright sunshine (over 1,600 hours a
year) which make it an ideal winter resort and a
haven for invalids, whilst summer weather is so
tempered by sea breezes that the mean summer
temperature is only 56.8, Purest water supply.

A city of boulevards, parks, and garden streets.
Lord Street, often described as “the finest street in
England,” magnificent shops, covered shopping way.

Unique Iluminations by myriad electric fairy lamps
artistically fixed like living fruit in the trees of the
boulevards,

Grand Military Concerts daily, several Golf Links, Sea
Bathing & Boating, and an endless round of attractions,

L W 106 01 i s
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T Sy est Drink when Yachiing

.

From Dr. A. B. GRIFFITHS, F.R.S., (Edin,), F.C.S.
Membor of the Chemieal Sogistiea of Paris and St. Petersburg ; Lecturer on
Ohemistry Contrnl Sshool of Chemil and Pharmacy ; Analytbenl Chemist
and Adsayer; Uonsulting Chemlst to Nabional Amatour Gardeners’ Azaocia-
tion ; Diplome do 'Institut de Franes (' Aeademie des Seisnces); Hasterio-
logical and Agrioultursl Expert; Agricultuml Anvalyet for tha Oounty Soke

of Patarborongh.,

12, Knowle Road, BRIXTON,
London, March 17th, 1896.

| hereby certify that | have examined Ross's * Royal
Belfast Ginger Ale,” and find that it is a genuine prepar-
ation and contains nothing that is injurious. It is, in fact,
a salutary, palatable and invigorating beverage—being madzs
of materials of absolute purity. Il possesses a flavour and
bouquet which render it quite unique. | can conscientiously
state that Ross’s * Royal Belfast Ginger Ale” is a whole-
some aehcious drink, possessing sustaining and invigorating
qualities. It is the finest Ginger Ale | have ever examined.

A. B. GRIFFITHS, Ph. D.



MIDLAND RAILWAY.

The Best Route

For Comfortable Travel and
Picturesque Scenery

TO AND FROM THE

HOLIDAY RESORTS

DERBYSHIRE, THE NORFOLK COAST, THE LANCASHIRE GCOAST,
YORKSHIRE SPAS AND WATERING PLACES,
THE SOUTH AND WEST OF ENGLAND,
ALL PARTS OF BSGCOTLAND.
THE ISLE OF MAN AND THE NORTH OF IRELAND.

THE NEW EXPRESS ROUTE, VIA HEYSHAM,

TO AND FROM THE

ISLE OF MAN AND NORTH OF IRELAND.

Magnificent new steamers, turbine and twin-serew, Sail Daily (Sundays excepted) between HEYSHAM and BELFAST, and
during the seasen between HEYSHAM and DOUGLAS in connection with Express Trains from and to all parts of the

Midland System.

Trains arrive and depart alongside Steamers at Heysham Luggage transferved free of charge.
For Programmes of Cheap Tickets, apply to any Midland Station Master or Ddistrict Superintendent; or to Mr. J. ELLIOTT,

Superintendent of the Line, Derby.
W. GUY GRANET, General Manoger.



ISLE OF MAN.

FAVOURITE ROUTES are via
LIVERPOOL and FLEETWOOD,

By the magnificent
New Turbine Steamer ¢ VIKING,”

and the FasTtesT PaAppLE STEAMERS, AFLOAT.

The

ENJOYABLE SHORT SEA TRIPS

from Douglas to Dublin, Belfast, Glasgow, Black-
pool, and other parts.

Passengers bia Fleetwood can break
--— their journey at Blackpool. —

ILLUSTRATED GUIDE FREE.

ISLE OF MAN STEAM PACKET CO., Lid,,
Water Street, Liverpool, and Douglas.

% -
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Delightful
Bays.
Romantie
Glens.
Shady
M Groves.
w AN ANCIENT ° Breezy
e KINGDOM. Moorlands
@z INTERESTING —
. PEOPLE. P
- QUAINT CUSTOMS. u;;lingk
' |DEAL CLIMATE. rOas
BEAUTIFUL Noble
SCENERY. Mountains

An Island just large enough to be perfect; just
rocly enough to make its sea coast charming;
Jjust hilly enough to healthily tax one's climbing
abllities’s mountains just high enough to show
one England, Ireland, Scotland and Wales ; level
plains broad enough to set off the other partsg
glens and ravines just big enough to be bold and
inspiring ; waterfalls full enough to be everflow-
ing—in short nothing in nature to be too much or
too little.
Write for beautifully illustrated Handbooks
(issued by the Official Information Department
under the Manx Government), Steamship Book-
lets, lists Hotels, Boarding and Lodgin}: Houses
and Apartments and Houses to be let furnished,
and all further information required—Walter M,
B. Kciﬁ. Douglas, lsle of Man; or 27, Imperial
uildings, Ludgate Circus, London.

éa utiful
Guides v

POST FREE.

=

G. T. CHESHIRE & SONS, |
A ERS D STATIONERS,

ty's Diogdly
KIDDERMINSTER,







